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Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Productive Business Solutions Limited
Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the
consolidated financial position of Productive Business Solutions Limited (the Company) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) as at 31 December 2018, and their consolidated financial performance
and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

‘What we have audited
The Group's consolidated financial statements comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

thti notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers SRL, The Financial Services Centre, Bishop's Court Hill, P.O. Box 111, St. Michael,
BBi4o004, Barbados, West Indies
T: +246-626-6700, F:+246-436-1275, www.pwe.com/bb
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Our audit approach

Audit Scope

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective
judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including among other matters consideration of whether
there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

[ Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit

Jommatter

Impairment of intangible assets including We tested management’s assumptions used in their
goodwill impairment testing model for goodwill and other

. intangible assets, including the future cash flow
Refer to Inates 2(f) 4 a"dd"_d lﬂf the cansc;hda;ed projections, discount rates and growth rates applied. With
ﬁnancm_ 5‘“‘9’*{“{"‘5)'0" isclosures of L the assistance of our valuations expert, we performed the
accounting policies, judgements and estimates. following procedures to evaluate the impairment

assessment performed by management:
As at 31 December 2018, total intangible assets
including goodwill accounted for US$18.4 million, s  Obtained management's discounted cash flow model
which represents 11% of total assets. The intangible (DCF) including qualitative and quantitative

: : analyses and obtained an understanding of the
assets consist of brands, contracts, software, franchise process used by management to determine fair value

agreements and licences. of each cash generating unit.
On an annual basis, management tests whether s Agreed the 31 December 2018 base year financial
intangible assets including goodwill are subject to information and current year forecast to our audited
impairment. The recoverable amounts of cash- results.
generating units have been determined based on the e  Tested management's assumptions as follows:
higher of value in use or fair value less costs to sell
calculations. The key assumptions and inputs for the Ao D U T G Ty SLL

‘ . ' revenue growth rates to historical revenue
value in use calculations are revenue growth rate, growth and also considered the impact on the
weighted average cost of capital, tax rates, capital growth rate attributed to any major revenue
expenditures, earnings before interest, tax, depreciation contracts negotiated at year end and finalised in
and amortisation (EBITDA) to revenue ratios and the first quarter of the subsequent year;

discount rates.
¥» Gross & EBITDA margins - We compared

Management has budgeted certain revenue growth rates gross margins to historical results, reconciling
for the various Cash Generating Units (CGUs). Whilst a vananies' to !:]nderlgv::g supporting data and
number of strategic initiatives have been established to current perod resuis;
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Key audil malter

How our auwdit addressed the ey audit

achieve the targeted growth rates, the assessment of the
carrying value of goodwill and intangible assets involves
significant judgement increasing the risk of estimation
uncertainty in relation to forecasting future cash flows
and is sensitive to growth rates and discount rates
applied to the future cash flows, and as such is an area
of focus.

Management performed an impairment assessment for
each CGU.

matber

» Tax rates - we compared the tax rate to the
entity's effective tax rate;

» Capital expenditures — we compared capital
expenditures to historical amounts and discussed
with management their capital expenditure
plans;

» Working capital requirements — we
compared the forecasted amounts to historical
working capital requirements; and

»  WACC & terminal value we developed a
range of parameters using available market
inputs and performed sensitivity analyses using
these parameters to determine the
reasonableness of management's fair value
measurements.

s« Considered subsequent events and impact on the
entity's cash flows and forecasts.

¢  Tested the calculations for mathematical accuracy
and considered the sensitivity of the caleulation by
varying the key assumptions and adjustments within
management’s forecast.

Based on the testing performed, no material adjustment
to the carrying value of intangible assets was considered
necessary.

Revenue Recognition — Non- standard contracts

related to reprographic products

Refer to notes 2(d) and 6 of the consolidated financial
statements for disclosures of related accounting
policies, judgements and balances.

The Group adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” effective January 1, 2018, using the
modified retrospective application, with the cumulative
effect of initially applying the standard to be adjusted to
the opening retained earnings. Therefore the
comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under 1AS 18.

We performed the following procedures on the non-
standard contracts related to reprographic products:

¢ We cbtained the Group's accounting policies as they
relate to the adoption of IFRS 15 and assessed the
reasonableness of those accounting policies with the
requirements of the standard.

e Wetested the opening equity adjustments in relation
to the adoption of the new standard’s classification
and measurement requirements.

s We obtained an understanding of the relevant
internal controls over the revenue process.

s  We performed cut-off testing over a sample of
revenue contracts to check that revenue is
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[ Key audit matter How our auwdit addressed the key audit

miatter

Revenues earned from reprographic products are recognized in the correct period based on the terms
through either an outright sale or an operating lease of of the contracts and in accordance with the Group's
equipment and from related service contracts. These accounting policy.

revenues are generated from invoices and standard ) ]
lease agreements. These include reprographic products | * We also tested, on a sample basis, a selection of

sold with full service maintenance agreements. revenue contracts throughout the year to evaluate
appropriate revenue recognition specifically with
focus on areas of impact such as the identification of
contract assets and liabilities and timing of revenue
recognition for contracts with multiple performance
obligations.

Sales and lease agreements that are individually
negotiated and tailored to meet the specific
circumstances of the customers typically include clauses
that have revenue recognition implications. We focused
on this area as there is increased management
judgement surrounding the identification of contract
assets and liabilities and timing of revenue recognition
for contracts with multiple performance obligations.

¢  We examined the reversal of any sales in the
subsequent period to evaluate appropriate revenue
recognition.

No exceptions were identified from our testing that
required management to make any adjustments to the
consolidated financial statements.

How we tailored our group audit scope
We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industries in which the Group operates.

The Group comprised 12 reporting components of which, we selected 8 components for testing which
represent the principal business units within the Group and covered entities within Jamaica, Barbados,
Central America, the Netherlands Antilles, Nicaragua and Dominican Republic. A full scope audit was
performed for Productive Business Sclutions Central America and its subsidiaries as it was determined to
be individually financially significant. Additionally, based on our professional judgement, Productive
Business Solutions (Nicaragua) Limited was selected to perform audit procedures on specific account
balances due to the materiality of certain individual balances to the consolidated financial statement as a
whole. We performed analytical procedures with respect to the remaining components with exception of
inconsequential entities. All of the in scope components were audited by a PricewaterhouseCoopers (also
referred to as “PwC) network firm.

In establishing the overall Group audit strategy and plan, we determined the type of work that is needed to
be performed at the component level by the Group engagement team and by the component auditors.
Where the work was performed by component auditors, we determined the level of involvement we
needed to have in the audit work of those components to be able to conclude whether sufficient
appropriate audit evidence has been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The Group team reviewed the working papers of PBS Central America and its
subsidiaries. The Group team reviewed all reports with regards to the audit approach and findings
submitted in detail by the full scope component.
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual
Report (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon),
which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Cur opinion on the consclidated financial statements does not cover the other information and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consclidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue asa
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the diselosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial staternents.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ann Wallace-Elcock.

e aticdos bor s SK L

Bridgetown, Barbados
31 March 2019
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2018 2017
Note $°000 $'000
Continuing Operations
Revenue 6 179,294 171,906
Direct expenses {104,226) (98,660)
Gross Profit 75,068 73,246
Other income 7 1,397 685
Selling, general and administrative expenses (64,507) (67,744)
Impairment losses (194) -
Operating Profit 11,764 6,187
Finance costs 10 (9,154) (8.902)
Profit/{Loss) before Taxation 2,610 (2,715)
Taxation 11 {2,476) (2,031)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 134 (4,746)
Other Comprehensive Income
ftemns that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Currency tlra_ns_lation differences on the net assets of foreign (2,456) (265)
subsidiaries
ltems that will not be reclassified {o profit or loss:
Actuarial losses — lermination benefits - {166)
(2,456) {431)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS {2,322) (5,177)
Profit/{Loss) for the Year is Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company 69 (4,878)
Non-controlling interests 65 132
134 (4,746)
Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year is Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (2,387) {5,309}
Non-controlling interests 65 132
(2,322) (5,177}
Cents Cents
Basic and diluted earnings per share for loss from continuing operation 13
attributable to ordinary share holders 0.06 (3.96)

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consoiidated Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2018 2017
Note $'000 $'000
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 22,657 20,291
Intangible assets 16 18,393 19,618
Lease receivables 17 2,393 2,082
Long term receivables 18 1,566 1,386
Deferred tax assets 19 1,439 1,015
46,448 44 392
Current Assets
Due from related parties 20 7,611 6,231
Inventories 21 42 956 42,700
Conlract assets 34 826 -
Trade and other receivables 22 50,589 43,593
Current portion of lease receivables 17 2,048 1,885
Taxation recoverable 9,992 9,565
Cash and cash equivalenis 23 6,570 12,097
120,592 116,071
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 40,487 39,059
Contract liabilities 34 3,670 -
Due to related parties 20 8,043 7.249
Taxation payable 2,602 2,407
Short term loans 25 1,526 1,991
Current portion of long-term loans 25 99 627
Bank overdraft 25 3,505 -
59,932 51,333
Net Current Assets 60,660 64,738

107,108 109,130




Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 3

Note
Equity
Attributable to Shareholders of the Company
Share capital 26
Other reserves 27
Accumulated deficit 14&28
Non-controlling Interests
Non-Current Liabiliies
Relirement benefit chligation 30
Deferred income tax liabilities 19
25

Borrowings

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

AL

faul Scott Direclor

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
57.317 57,317

(16,207) {13,751}
(6,030) {5,533)
35,080 38,033

549 484
35,620 38,517
565 579
423 152

70,491 69,882

71,479 70,613

107,108 109,130

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these cansolidated financial statements



Productive Business Solutions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2018

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 4

Attributable to Shareholders of the

Company
Non-
Number of Share Other Accumulated controlling
Shares Capital Reserves Deficit interest Total
‘000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2017 45,001 45,001 (11,026) (2,984} 352 31,343
Currency translation differences - - (265) - - (265)
Actuarial loses on the termination
benefits - - 117 (283) - (166)
Net loss - - - {4,878} 132 {4,746}
Total comprehensive loss - - {148) {5,161} 132 {5,177}
Transgfer from reserves - - (2,577) 2,612 - 35
Increase in share capilal {note 26) 78,271 12,316 - - - 12,316
Balance at 1 January 2018 123,272 57,317 (13,751) {5,533} 484 38,517
Change in accounting policy {note } i} R ;
34) (566) (566)
Balance as at 1 January 2018,
restated 123,272 57,317 (13,751) {6,099) 484 37,951
Currency translation differences - - (2,456) - - {2,456}
Net profit - - - 69 65 134
Total comprehensive loss - - (2,456) 69 65 {2,322}
Balance at 31 December 2018 123,272 57,317 {16,207) (6,030) 549 35,629

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statemenis.




Productive Business Solutions Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 5

2018 2017

$'000 $°000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities (Note 32) 722 (5,886)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Interest paid (6,771} (4,154)
Proceeds from borrowing 4,291 22,082
Repayments of borrowings {2,063} (17,450)
Issuance of shares - 12,316
Net cash (used in)/ provided by financing activities {4,543) 12,794
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received 549 13
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {2,945} (5.422)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 694 5,631
Net cash {(used in)/ provided by investing activities {1,702) 222
Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents {5.523) 7,130
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 12,097 4,982
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (4} 5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR {NOTE 23) 6,570 12,097

The principal non-cash transactions include:

s Transfer to property, plant and equipment from inventory during operating lease period of $12,643,000

(2017 - $10,385,000).

e Transfer from property, plant and equipment to inventory upon expiry of operating lease of $9,434,000

(2017 - $9,593,000).

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018
{Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1. Identification and Principal Activities

Productive Business Solutions Limited (“the Company™) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Barbados under the
International Business Corporation (IBC) Act Cap. 77 on 16 December 2010. The registered office of the Company is at Facey
House # 42 Warrens Industrial Park, Warrens, St. Michaels, Barbados.

The Company is capitalised by ordinary shares and preference shares. The Company is a subsidiary of Facey Group Limited,
a company incomporated in Barbados under the Companies Act, Cap. 308 of the laws of Barbados as an intemational business
company which owns 68.28% of the ordinary shares. The preference shares are 25,800,000 9.75% Jamaican dollars
redeemable cumulative preference shares.

The Company is listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange and the International Securities Market in Barbados.

The Company's ultimate parent company and controlling party are Elkon Limited (“Elkon”), which is incorporated and domiciled
in Jamaica, and Paul B Scott, respectively.

The principal activilies of the Company and its subsidiaries, (referred to as “Group”) are the distribution of printing equipment,
business machines, handsets and related accessories.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 31 March 2019. The directors have the power to amend
and reissue the financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements, herein afler referred to
as the financial statements, are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise staled.

(a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
IFRS Interpretation Committee {IFRS IC) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The consolidated financial
stalements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as madified by the revaluation of certain items of
property, plant and equipment.

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. Although
these estimates are based on managements' best knowledge of current events and action, actual results could differ from
those eslimales. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimales are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
{Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in current year

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations lo existing standards have been published that became effective
during the current financial year. The Group has assessed the relevance of all such new standards, interpretations and
amendments and has affected the following, which are immediately relevant to its operations:

IFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) specifies how
an entity should classify and measure financial instruments, including some hybrid contracts. It requires all financial
assels to be classified on the basis of the entily’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characleristics of the financial asset; inilially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, particular transaction costs; and subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39. They apply a consistent approach to
classifying financial assets and replace the four categories of financial assets in IAS 38, each of which had its own
classification criteria. For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the I1AS 39 requirements. The main change
is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an
entity's own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch. IFRS 9 introduces a new madel for the recognition of impairment losses — the
expected credit losses (ECL) model. There is a ‘three stage' approach which is based on the change in credit quality
of financial assets since inilial recognition. In practice, the new rules mean that entities will have to record an
immediate loss equal to the 12-month ECL on initial recognition of financial assets that are not credit impaired (or
lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where there has been a significant increase in credit risk, impairment is measured
using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. Management has assessed the application of the credit loss model on
trade receivables, lease receivables and inter-company balances under IFRS 9. The impact on these financial
slatements were not material. Management has utilised the modified retrospective transition approach. The Group
applied IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 and has elected not to restale comparalive information in accordance with the
transitional provisions. As a resuit, the comparative information provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group's previous accounting policy. Additional disclosures in accordance with the standard have been
included in the financial statements in Note 34.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, (effeclive for the periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018). The new standard introduces the core principle that revenue must be recognised when the goods
or services are transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled goods or services that are distinct
must be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates on the contract price must generally be allocated to the
separate elements, When the consideration varies for any reason, minimum amounts must be recognised if they are
not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with customers have to be capitalised and
amortised over the period when the benefits of the contract are consumed. Management has ulilised the modified
retrospective transition approach. The Group applied IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and has elected not to resiate
comparative information in accordance with the transitional provisions. As a result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance with the Group's previous accounting policy. Furthermore
management has identified contract assets and liabilities as reported in the statement of financial position. Additional
disclosures in accordance with the standard have been included in the financial statements in Note 34.

Amendment to IFRS 18, 'Revenue from contracts with customners’, (effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018). These amendments comprise ciarifications of the guidance on identifying performance
abligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment (gross versus
net revenue presentation). The |ASB has also included additional praclical expedients related to transition to the new
revenue standard.

IFRIC 22," Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’, (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018). The amendment clarifies how to determine the exchange rate for initial recognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability in connection with an advance consideration. The entity has not been
materially impacted by this interpretation as there has always been consensus on the definition of date of the
transaction (consequently the date for determining the exchange rate) as the date of initial recognition, as required
by the interpretation.
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Productive Business Solutions Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018
{Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendmants to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The Group has concluded that the following standards which are published but not yet effective, are relevant to its
operations and will impact the Group's accounting policies and financial disclosuras as discussed below. These standards
and amendments to existing standards are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning after
1 January 2018, but the Group has not early adopted them:

e IFRS 16, 'Leases’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earier application
permitted if IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracls with Customers’, is also applied). The Intemmational Accounting
Standards Board (JASB) published IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, which replaces the current guidance in I1AS 17. This will require
changes in accounting by lessees in particular. IFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting
future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an optional
exemption for certain shori-term leases and leases of low-value assels; however, this exemption can only be applied
by lessees. For lessors, the accounling stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has updated the guidance on
the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also
be affected by the new standard. Under IFRS 18, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group has commenced
assessment and has identified that a right of use asset and lease obligation would have to be recorded on the
consolidated financial statements and the associated depreciation and interest expense within the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

+« IFRIC 23, ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’ (effeclive for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2019). This IFRIC clarifies how the recognition and measurement requirements of IAS 12 'Income taxes’,
are applied where there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The IFRS IC had clarified previously that IAS 12,
not IAS 37 'Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’, applies to accounting for uncertain income tax
treatments. IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabililies
where there is uncerlainty over a tax treatment. The adoption of this standard is not expecled to have a significant
impact on the Group.

e Amendment to IFRS 9, Financial instruments’, on prepayment features with negative compensation {effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). This amendment confirm that when a financial liability
measurad at amortised cost is modified without this resulting in de-recognition, a gain or loss should be recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the original contractual cash
flows and the modified cash flows discounled at the original effective interest rate. This means that the difference
cannot be spread over the remaining life of the instrument which may be a change in practice from IAS 39. The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.
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(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

Annual improvements 2015-2017 (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). These
amendments include minor changes to:
« IFRS 3, ‘Business combinalions', — a company remeasures ils previously held interast in a joint operation when
it obtains control of the business.
s |FRS 11, ‘Joint arrangements’, — a company does not remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation
when it obtains joint control of the business.
e 1AS 12, 'Income taxes' — a company accounts for all income tax consequences of dividend payments in the
same way.
s |AS 23, '‘Borrowing costs' — a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to
develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.
The adoption of these standards is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group.

There are no other new or amended standards and interpretalions that are published but not yet effective that would be
expected to have an impact on the accounting policies or financial disclosures of the Group.

(b} Consolidation

(i

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transfemred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations involving third parties by the
Group. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assels transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration amangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assels acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combinalion
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisilion basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss, in the
statement of comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in United States dollars uniess otherwise indicated)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued}

{b) Consolidation (continued)
(i) Subsidiaries {continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group's subsidiaries, countries of incorporation, and the Group’s percentage interest are as follows:

Group's
o LG Percentage
incorporation intere stg
2018 2017
Productive Business Solutions Limited Barbados 100 100
Productive Business Solutions Caribbean Limited and its
subsidiaries Saint Lucia 100 100
Productive Business Solutions Limited Jamaica 100 100
Cayman Business Machines Limited* Cayman 40 40
Mobay Holdings N.V. and its subsidiary Curacao 100 100
Productive Business Solutions {Curacao) B.V. and its subsidiary Curacao 100 100
Productive Business Solutions {Aruba) N.V. Aruba 100 100
Productive Business Solutions Limited and its subsidiaries Saint Lucia 100 100
Dominican
Productive Business Solutions Dominicana, 5.A.5. Republic 100 100
Nicaragua Holdings and its subsidiary Saint Lucia 100 100
Productive Business Solutions {Nicaragua), S.A. Nicaragua 100 100
Springer Clarke Business Machines Limited and its subsidiaries Barbados 100 100
Productive Business Solutions (Barbados) Limited Barbados 100 100
ADB Investments Limited Barbados 100 100
Productive Business Solutions {(Central America), S.A and its
subsidiaries Panama 100 100
British Virgin
Dorada Management Inc. Islands 100 100
Productive Business Solutions (Guatemala}, 5.A. Guatemala 100 100
Global Products Alliance, Incorporated USA 100 100
Productive Business Solutions Costa Rica, S.A. Costa Rica 100 100
Documentos y Digitales S.A. Guatemala 100 100
Negocios Foltograficos, S.A. Guatemala 100 100
Productive Business Solutions El Salvador, S.A. de C.V. El Salvador 100 100
Productive Business Solutions (Panama}, S.A. and
Tradeco Zona Libre S.A. Panama 100 100
Productive Business Solutions (Belize) Limited Belize 100 100
Productive Business Solutions Honduras, S.A. de C.V. Honduras 75 75
Productive Business Solutions (Colombia), S.A.S. Colombia 100 100
Productive Business Solutions (South America) Limited Saint Lucia 100 100
Productive Business Solutions {Suriname} Limited Saint Lucia 100 100

In accordance with Cayman laws, entilies that are domiciled in the Cayman Island and are not issued as Local Companies Control
Law Licenses, are required {o be at least 60% owned by a Caymanian. The operation of Cayman Business Machines Limited is
however controlled by Productive Business Solutions Limited and is therefore, in substance, categorized as a subsidiary.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

{b) Consolidation (continued)

(c)

(d)

(i1}

(iii)

Transaclions with non-controlling inlerests

The Group freats transactions with non-controliing interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group. For
purchases of ownership interest in subsidiaries fram non-controlling interests in which the Group retains control of
the subsidiary, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests where
control is retained by the Group are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had direclly disposed of the related assels or liabililies. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in an assaciate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounls previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entilies are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which each entity operates {'the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in United States Dollars, which is the company's functional and presentation currency.

Transaclions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. At the statement of financial position date,
monetary assets and liabililies denominated in foreign currencies are iranslated using the weighted average closing
exchange rale. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
transtation at year-end exchange rales, of monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency diffaerent from the presentation currency are translated as follows:

a) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at year end rates,

b) Iltems affecting the statement of comprehensive income are translated at average rales, and

¢) The resultant gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income as translation gains or losses.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group's aclivilies. Revenue is shown net of applicable value added taxes, retlums, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

Reprographic products
Revenue eamed from reprographic products is either through an outright sale or an operating lease of equipment and
from related service contracts.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued}

(d)

{e)

Revenue recognition {continued)

Reprographic products (continued)

Revenues from the sale of equipment, including those from sales-type leases, are recognised al the time of sale or at the
inception of the lease, as appropriate. For equipment sales that require installation, revenue is recognised when the
equipment has been delivered and installed at the customer location. Sales of customer-installable products are
recognised upon shipment or receipt by the customer according to the customer's shipping terms. Revenues from
equipment under other leases and similar arrangements are accounted for by the operating lease method and are
recognised as eamed over the lease term, which is generally on a straight-line basis.

A substantial portion of the Group's reprographic products is sold with full service maintenance agreements. Service
revenues are derived primarily from these maintenance contracts on equipment sold to customers and are recognised
over the term of the contracts in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by reference to completion of
the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services to be
provided.

Upon implementation of IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, the recognition policies have focused on the
application of the 5-step model. Revenue is recognized only after there are specific indicator of transfer of control to the
customer. To evidence transfer of control on contracts where revenue is recognized at a point in time, management has
defined that revenue can only be recognized after the equipment or part is installed or the supplies are delivered. Bill and
hold agreements are scrutinized to ensure the transfer of control lo the customer is effective.

For contracts where revenue is recognized over time, management verifies the contract checklist has been properly filled
out and evidence is captured to demonstrate the service is being provided to the customer.

Telecommunications products
Revenue from telecommunications products comprises revenue from the sales of cellular phones. These products are
sold under contractual agreements with the telecommunications providers.

Revenue from the sale of telecommunications products is recognised on a gross basis as management has determined
that the Group acts as a principal in relalion to these transactions, due to the fact that the Group bears the majority of risk,
principally credit and inventory risk, in relation to such transaclions, and the Group also acts as primary obligor. With the
implementation of IFRS 15, control became the key consideration when assessing the nature of the promise to the
customer. When the entity does not control the good or service (or inventory) before it is transferred to the customer it is
likely that the promise in the contract is to arrange for goods or services to be delivered (rather than these to be provided
by the entity). In such cases, the net of revenue minus its cost is presented as a commission, within the Other Income
account of the statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue from the sale of telecommunications products is recognised when a Group entity has delivered products to the
customer; the customer has accepted the products and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Interest income is recognised on the accrual basis on the effective interest basis, except when collectability is considered
doubtful. In such cases, income is recorded when economic benefils are received.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are shown at fair value, based on valuations by extemal independent valuers, less subsequent
depreciation for buildings. Valuations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the fair value of a revalued
asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is
eliminated against the gross carying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to other comprehensive income
and shown as other reserves in shareholder's equity. Decreases that offset previous incraases of the same asset are
recorded in other comprehensive income and debited against other reserves directly in equity; all other decreases are
charged to the profit or loss.

All other property, plant and equipment are staled at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e)

f

{9)

Property, plant and equipment {continued}

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. For all other property, plant and equipment, depreciation
is calculated at annual rates on the straight-line basis to write-off the cost of the assets to their residual values over their
estimaled useful lives at annual rates as follows:

Freehold buildings 2-2%%
Leasehold buildings and improvements 10 - 20%
Furniture, fixtures, plant and equipment 10 - 33%4%
Motor vehicles 20 - 25%

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount and are included in operating profit.

Repairs and maintenance expenditure is charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which it is incurred. The
cost of major renovations is included in the carmying amount of the asset when it is probable that fulure economic benefits
in excass of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Group.

When revalued assels are sold, the amounts included in other reserves are iransferred to retained eamings.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net
idenlifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary, associale or joint venture at the date of acquisition. Goadwill on
acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisilions of associates and joint ventures
is included in investment in associales and investment in joint venture, respeclively. Separately recognised goodwill
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generaling units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or Groups of cash-generating units that are expecled to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose.

{ii) Brands, contracts, software, franchise agreements and licences.
Brands, coniracts, software, franchise agreements and licences are shown at historical cost less amorlisation and
impairment and are deemed to have finite useful lives. Amoriisation is calculaled using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of the intangible assets over their estimated useful lives between 6 and 20 years.

(iii) Computer software
This represents acquired computer software licences, which are capitalised on the basis of costs incurred o acquire
and bring 1o use the specific software. The costs of these assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives of
three years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assels
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assel's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cosls
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impaiment, assels are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting data.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

{h) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity
of another entily.

Financial assets

Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets at amortised cost. The classification depends on the
business model used for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

lmpairment
From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with

ils financial assels classified at amortised cost, lease receivables, long term receivables and related party balances.

Application of the General Mode!

The Group has applied the 'general model’ as required under IFRS 9 for financial assets other than trade receivables. Under
this mode), the Group is required to assess on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated with ils financial assets caried at
amortised cost. The ECL will be recognised in profit or loss before a loss event has occurred. The measurement of ECL
reflecls an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes. The
probability-weighted outcome considers mulliple scenarios based on reasonable and supporiable forecasts. Under current
guidance, impairment amount represents the single best outcome; the time value of money; and reasonable and supportable
informalion that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, cumrent conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECL is calculated by multiplying the Probability of default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure at Default (EAD).

The impairment model uses a three-stage approach based on the extent of credit deterioration since origination:

Stage 1 - 12-month ECL applies to all financial assets that have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
origination and are not credit impaired. The ECL will be computed using a2 12-month PD that represents the probability of
default cccuming over the next 12 months.

Stage 2 — When a financial asset experiences a significant increase in credit risk subsequent to origination but is not credit
impaired, it is considered lo be in Stage 2. This requires the computation of ECL based on lifetime PD that represents the
probability of default occurring over the remaining estimated life of the financial asset. Provisions are higher in this stage
because of an increase in risk and the impact of a longer time horizon being considerad compared fo 12 months in Slage 1.

Stage 3 - Financial assets that have an objective evidence of impairment will be included in this stage. Similar to Stage 2,
the allowance for credit losses will continue to caplure the lifetime ECL.

The Group uses judgement when considering the following factors that affect the determination of impairment:

Assessment of Significant Increase in Credif Risk

The assessment of a significant increase in credil risk is done on a relalive basis. To assess whether the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since origination, the Group compares the risk of default occurring over the
expacted life of the financial asset at the reporting date to the comesponding risk of default at origination, using key risk
indicators that are used in the Group's existing risk management processes. At each reporting date, the assessment of a
change in credit risk will be individually assessed for those considered individually significant and at the segment level.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
{h) Financial instruments {continued}

This assessment is symmetrical in nature, allowing credit risk of financial assets to move back to Stage 1 if the increase in
credil risk since orngination has reduced and is no longer deemed to be significant.

Macroeconomic Factors, Forward Looking Informalion and Multiple Scenarios
The Group applies an unbiased and probability weighted estimate of credit losses by evaluating a range of possible oulcomes
that incorporates forecasts of future economic conditions.

Macroeconomic factors and forward looking information are incorporated into the measurement of ECL as well as the
determination of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination. Measurement of ECLs at each
reporting period reflect reasonable and supporiable information at the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and faorecasts of future economic conditions.

The Group uses three scenarios that are probability weighted to determine ECL.

Expected Life

When measuring ECL, the Group considers the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
All contractual terms are considered when determining the expected life, including prepayment options and extension and
rollover options.

Application of the Simplified Approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach pemitted by IFRS 9, which requires that the impairment
provision is measured at initial recognition and throughout the life of the receivables using a lifetime ECL. As a practical
expedient, a provision matrix is ulilised in determining the lifelime ECLs for trade receivables.

The lifelime ECLs are determined by taking into consideration historical rates of default for each segment of aged
receivables as well as the estimated impact of forward looking information.

Application of this policy until 31 December 2017

The Group applied IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 and has elected not to restate comparative information in accordance with
the transitional provisions in IFRS 9 [7.2.15). As a result, the comparative information provided coniinues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group’s previous accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classified its financial assets in the following calegories: al fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale. The accounting policy for trade receivables is dealt with in Note 2 (j).
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assels at initial recognition. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to bolh a
financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or aquity of another entity.

The Group classifies its trade receivables as loans and receivables. The accounting policy for trade receivables is dealt
with in Note 2(j). The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initiai recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
dale. Financial assels are deracognized when the rights to cash flows from the financiat assets have expired or transferred
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are also transferred.

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a Group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment provisioning of trade receivables is described in Note 2(j).

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, this is the initial recognition minus the cumulative amortization of any difierence between
that initial amount and the maturity amount. Financial liabilities at amorlized costs are classified as current or non-current
depending whether these are due within 12 months after the balance sheet date or beyond. Financial liabilities are
derecognized when either of the following take place: The Group is discharged from its obligation, upon expiration or when
they are cancelled or replaced by a new liability.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

®

)

(k)

n

Inventories

Inventories are caried at weighted average purchase cost. These items are stated less provision for write down to net
realisable value, where necessary and are stated at the lower of average cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Up until 31 December 2017, Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less provision made for impairment
of these receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end. A provision for impairment of trade
receivables is established when there is objeclive evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all the amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest for similar borrowings. Bad debts are written-off during the year in which they are identified.

Effective 1 January 2018, the Group has implemented IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, as a result, impairment over trade
receivables is monthly determined with the aid of a matrix based on the ageing of the account. Twice a year, management
assess whether there has been any indicator of a change in the credit risk. Addilionally (also twice a year) a
comprehensive evalualion is performed with the objective of identifying individual accounts that may be subject of
impairment. Those accounts identified are either written off from the records or provided for by the lotal of its camying
value,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis include cash on hand, restricted cash (where applicable) and short-term deposits with original
maturilies of three months or less, net of bank overdrafts. In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and at bank, short term bank deposits and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounls are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(m} Income taxes

Taxation expense in the statement of comprehensive income comprises current and deferred tax charges.

Current lax charges are based on taxable profits for the year, which differ from the profit before tax reported because it
excludes items that are taxable or deductible in other years, and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated at tax rates that have been enacted at the date of the statement of financial position.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be paid or recovered on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and the corresponding lax bases. Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Currently enacted tax rates are used in the determination of deferred income tax.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except whera the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise from the same taxable entity, relate to the same
tax authority and when the legal right of offset exists.

Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except where it relates to items charged or credited to other
comprehensive income, in which case, deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive incoms.
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2,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separale asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Share capital
Ordinary Shares are classified as equity instruments. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period
in which they are declared.

Earnings per share

(i) Basic eamings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing:
« the profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares
= by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted eamings per share

Diluted eamnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic eamings per share to take into

account:
+ the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares, and

+ the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive polential ordinary shares.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

(q) Borrowings

U

(s)

Borrowings are recognised inilially at cost, being their issue proceeds, net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequently,
borrowings are stated at amortised cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Leases

As Lessee

Leases of plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocaled between the liability and
finance costs so as to achieve a constant rate of retumn on the finance batance outstanding. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to profit or loss aver the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. Plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases of assets under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified
as operaling leases. Payments made under operaling leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penally is recognised as an expense in the period in which terminalion takes place.

As Lessor

Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessee are classified
as finance leases. When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease paymentls is
recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is
recognised as uneamed finance income. Lease income Is recognised over the term of the lease in a manner which refiects
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Assels leased out under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment in the
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their expecled useful lives on a basis consistent with similar
owned property, plant and equipment. Rental income is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease. In some instances, transfers are made from Inventory to Property, Plant and Equipment to facilitate the
leasing of assets. In instances where leased equipment is retumed this is transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment
to Inventory.

When an operaling lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made lo the
lessor by way of penally is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which termination takes place.

Post-employment benefits

The Group participates in a defined contribution plan operated by a related party, Musson (Jamaica} Limiled, whereby it
pays contributions to a separate, trustee-administered fund for its Jamaican operation. Once the contribulions have been
paid, the Group has no further payment obligations. Contributions to the plan are charged to profit or loss in the period to
which they relate.

There is an unfunded retirement benefit plan in the Nicaragua and El Salvador operations which is reflected in the balance
sheet as a liability. Changes to benefits are calculated by third party actuaries and are reflected in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal relirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination
benefils at the earier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
{b) when the enlity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of 1AS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporling period are discounted to their present value.
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2.

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

®)

(u)

v

Finance costs
Finance cosls includes interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method, interest on finance
leases, material bank charges and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reporied in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis or realise the
asset and setlle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the nomal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the company
or the counterparty.

Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer.

Financial Risk Management

(a)

Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variely of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group treasury) under policies approved by the Board
of Directors. Group treasury identifies and evaluates financial risks in ¢lose co-operation with the Group's operating
units. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(iy Creditrisk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that its customers, clients or counterparties will cause
a financial loss for the Group by failing to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit exposures arise principally
from the Group's receivables from cuslomers and are influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group has established credit policies under which each customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness prior to the Group offering them a credit facility. Credit limits are assigned to each customer and
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The Group has procedures in place to restrict customer orders if the order will
result in customers exceeding their credit limits. Customers who fail to meet the Group’s benchmark creditworthiness
may transact with the Group on a prepayment basis.

Customer credit risk is monitored according to their credit characteristics such as whether it is an individual or
company, geographic location, industry, aging profile, and previous financial difficulties. As at 1 January 2018, the
Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected credit losses in respect of
trade and other receivables. As at 1 January 2017, the Group establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred credit losses in respect of frade and other receivables. The Group addresses
impairment assessment in two areas: individually assessed allowances.

The Group's average credit period on the sale of goods is 90 days. The Group generally provides fully for all
receivables over 180 days based on historical experience. Trade receivables between 90 and 180 days are provided
for based on an estimate of amounts that would be imecoverable, determined by taking into consideration past
default experience, current and future economic conditions and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired.

Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions. The Group has policies in place to limit the
amount of exposure to any one financial institution. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the amount reflected on
the balance sheet.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{a) Financial risk factors

(iy Creditrisk
At year end, the banks where the Group maintains most of its cash, were rated by Fitch Ratings as follows:

Short Term Long Term

BAC Bank, Int. Fi+ AAA
CIBC First Caribbean Intemational Bank F1+ AA-
Citibank F1+ AAA

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
The ageing analysis of irade receivables that are past due but not impaired was as follows:

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

90 to 180 days 2,762 2,143
Greater than 180 days 9,496 3,921
12,258 6,064

Trade receivables that are considered impaired
Certain trade receivables are considerad impaired and have been fully provided for. The movement in the provision
for these trade receivables was as follows:

2018 2017

$’000 $'000
At start of year 1,827 1,288
Provision for impairment 438 700
Write-offs during the year {311) (273)
Unused amounts reversed (103) 113
Exchange difference (8) {1)
At end of year 1,843 1.827

Credit exposure for trade receivables
The credit exposure for trade receivables at their camrying amounis, as categorised by the customer sector, was as

follows:
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Govemnment 16,645 14,338
Private entities 27,897 27,450
44,542 41,788
Less: Provision for allowances (1,843) (1,827)

42,698 39,961
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{a) Financial risk factors {continued)

(i) Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet ils payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities
when they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and other liquid assets, and
maintaining the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Liquidity risk management process

The Group's liquidity management process, as carried out within the Group and monitored by the Board of Directors,

primarily includes:

{iy Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on an ongoing basis. This incorporates an assessment of expected
cash flows and the availability of collateral which could be used to secure funding if required;

{ii) Maintaining committed lines of credit; and

(i) Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
The maturity profile of financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is as follows:

Within 12 1to§ Over 5

Months Years years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2018
Trade payables 29,966 s - 29,966
Other payables 10,519 - - 10,519
Due to related parties 8,043 5 - 8,043
Borrowings — non-related parties 7,123 65,379 21,321 93,823
Bomowings — related parties 517 24 - 541
Bank Overdraft 3,505 - - 3,505
59,673 65,403 21,321 146,397

2017
Trade payables 18,421 - - 18,421
Other payables 21,217 - - 21,217
Due {o related parties 7.249 - - 7,249
Borowings — non-related parties 8,821 67,527 22,592 98,940
Borrowings — related pariies 518 38 - 556

56,226 67,565 22,592 146,383
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3.

Financial Risk Management {Continued)

{a) Financial risk factors {continued)
(iii) Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly arise from changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. Market risk is monitored by the Facey Group Limiled's treasury
depariment which carries out extensive research and monilors the price movement of financial assels on the local
and international markets. Market risk exposures are measured using sensilivity analysis. There has been no change
to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Currency risk
Cuirency risk is the risk thal the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarity with respect to the Jamaican (JA) dollar, Honduran Lempira (HNL ), Nicaraguan Cérdoba (NIO), Dominican
Peso (DOP), Costa Rican Colén {CRC)and the Guatemala Quetzal {GTQ). Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised asseis and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by ensuring that the net exposure in foreign assets and liabilities is
kept to an acceptable level by monitoring currency posilions. The Group further manages this risk by maximising
foreign currency eamings and holding foreign currency balances.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, the net assets of which are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.The table below summarises the

Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December:

usD HNL JMD NIO DOP CRC GTQ  Other* Total
$'000 $'000 $'000  $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2018
Financial Assets
Long term receivables 738 762 40 5 - - 21 - 1,566
Lease receivables 2,514 - - - - - - 1,927 4,441
Due from refated parties 5,300 - 1,153 - - - - 1,158 7.611
Trade receivables 23,124 6,612 1,885 2,486 2,544 2,076 1,344 2,628 42,699
Other receivables 3,985 37 19 141 61 578 5 649 5475
Cash and cash equivalents 1,797 3,169 131 260 138 70 263 742 6,570
Total financial assets 37.458 10,580 3,228 2,892 2,743 2,724 1,633 7.104 68,362
Financial fiabilities
Trade payables 23,369 3,964 1m 304 110 1,528 355 225 29,966
Other payables 6,480 1,088 120 827 222 636 1,372 342 11,087
Due to related parties 7.790 - 181 - - - - 72 8,043
B°g:r‘;:"e“595 —non-refaled 50,899 - 19417 . . - ; - 70316
Bormrowings — related parties 530 - - - - - - - 530
Finance Leases 660 - - - - 610 - - 1,270
Bank Overdraft - . 3,505 - - - - - 3,505
Total financial liabilities 89,728 5,052 23,334 113 332 2,774 1,727 639 124,717
Nel position (52,270) 5528 (20,106) 1,761 2,411 {50) (94) 6,465

* Includes currencies lraded at fixed exchange rate or with minimum fluctuation.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{a) Financial risk factors {continued)
{lii} Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

usbD JMD GTQ Other* Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2017

Financial Assets
Lang term receivables 868 96 190 232 1,386
Lease receivables 2,440 - - 1,527 3,967
Due from relaled parties 3,718 1,352 - 1,161 6,231
Trade receivables 22,873 1,667 5,918 9,502 39,961
Other receivables 32 115 110 1,187 1,724
Cash and cash equivalents 7,683 174 2,189 2,051 12,097
Total financial assets 37,894 3,404 8,408 15,660 65,366
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 15,688 282 622 1,829 18,421
Other payables 15,517 599 2,262 2,839 21,217
Due to related parties 7,051 184 - 14 7,249
Borrowings — non-related parties 50,181 19,667 1,089 1,013 71,950
Borrowings — related parties 550 - - - 550
Total financial liabilities 88,987 20,732 3,973 5.695 119,387
Net position {51,093) {17,328} 4,435 9,965

*Includes currencies traded at fixed exchange rate or with minimum fluctuation.



Page 24

Productive Business Solutions Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2018
(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. Financial Risk Management {Continued)

{a) Financial risk factors (continued)

{ili) Market risk {continued}

Currency risk (continued)

The following tables indicate the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure on their monetary assets
and liabilities and forecast cash flows. The change in currency rate below represents management's assessment
of the possible change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis represents outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the yearend for a reasonably expected change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity of the profit or loss was primarily as a result of foreign exchange gains and
losses on translation of trade receivables and payables, long term receivables and borrowings. There would be an
immaterial impact on other components of equity.

Effect on
% Change in Profit
Currency Rate before Tax
2018
2018 $'000
Currency:
HNL -4 K|
HNL +1 (7
JMD -4 103
JMD +1 {25)
NIO -4 {38)
NIO +1 9
DRP -4 147
DRP +1 {35)
CRC -4 {233)
CRC +1 55
GTQ +1 {26)
Effect on
% Change in Profit before
Currency Rate Tax
2017
2017 $'000
Currency:
JMD -4 693
JMD +1 (173)
GTQ -4 177

GTQ +1 {44)
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3.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(ili) Cash flow and fair valua interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate exposure arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and revolving short-term
borrowings expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group analyses its interest rale exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated for borrowings that
represent the major interest-bearing posilions, taking into consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions and
altemative financing.

The following table indicates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, on the profit or loss. As the Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings, the sensilivity of the profit
or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates based on floating rate long-term and revolving short-term
borrowings. There is no direct impact on other components of equity.

Effect on Effect on

Loss Profit

before Tax before Tax

2018 2017

$°'000 $°000

Change in basis points:

- 200 1,487 1,409
+100 (744) (704)

{b) Capital management

(c)

The capital management process is camied out by the parent company. The Group's objectives when managing capital are
lo safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide retums for the shareholder and benefits
for other stakeholders. The Board of Directors monitors the retum on capital, which the Group defines as net operating
income (excluding non-recurring items) divided by tolal equily {excluding non-redeemable preference shares and non-
controlling interests). There was no change to the capital management process during the year.

The Group has no specific capital management strategy and is exposed to extemally imposed capital requirements
through debt covenanis as outlined in the loan agreement with JCSD Trustee Services Limited on behalf of Bondholders.
The financial covenants include: The Cuirent ratio, Interest coverage ratio and the net tolal debt to EBITDA ratio. The
Group was in compliance with the financial covenants as at the year end.

Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value of the Group's financial instruments that, subsequent to initial recognilion, are not measured at fair value is
determmined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each statement of financial position date. The fair values of these financial instruments
arg determined as follows:

()] The face value, less any estimated credit adjustments, for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year are estimated to approximate their fair values. These financial assets and liabilities include cash and bank
balances, trade receivables and payables and short-term borrowings.

(i} The carrying values of non-current borrowings to non-related parties approximate their fair values, as these loans arg
carried at amortised cost reflecting their contractual obligations and the interest rates are reflective of current market
rates for similar transactions. The fair value of borrowings is disclosed in note 25.

(i}  The fair values of the long-term receivables and loans to and from related parties could not be reliably determined as
these instruments were granted under spacial terms and are not likely to be traded in a fair market exchange.
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3.

Financial Risk Management (Continued}

(d) Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

There are no offsefling arrangements within the group. As such financial assets and liabilities are not offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectalions of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual resulis. The estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwili

The Group test annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2(f). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been detenmined based on value-in-use calculations, which require
the use of estimates. In determining the value in use, management has made certain assumptions regarding revenue growlh rate,
EBITDA to revenue ralios and discount rates. See Note 16 for sensitivity of amounts to estimates.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries have been deemed to be indefinite life intangibles. Other intangible
assats have been deemed 1o be finite life intangibles. Their estimated useful lives have been determined by management, based
on their best estimate of the time period over which the Group will benefit from the assets acquired. Management has estimated
that the useful lives of the intangibles will be between 6 and 20 years. See note 16 for sensilivity of amounts to estimates.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jursdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities for actual and anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. In determining these estimates, management considers the merit of any audit issues raised,
based on their interpratation of the taxation laws, and their knowledge of any precedents established by the taxation authorities.
Where the final tax outcome of lhese matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences could
materiality impact the current tax and daferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made (see Note 19).

Segment Financial information

The group’s Chief Executive Officer examines the group’s performance from a geographic perspective and has identified two
reportable segments of business:

e Central America- The principal activities of this part of the business is the sale and leasing of reprographic products including
printing equipment, business machines and related accessories to customers in the Central America Region such as
Guatemala, El Salvador, Honduras, Costa Rica, Nicaragua and Panama.

¢ Caribbean- The principal activities of this part of the business is the sale and leasing of reprographic products including
printing equipment, business machines and related accessories to customers in the Caribbean region such as Dominican
Republic, Jamaica, Barbados, Curacao and Aruba.

Management primarily uses a measure of adjusted eamings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisalion (EBITDA) to
assess the performance of the operating segments. However, information about the segments’ revenue, assets and liabilities are
also submitted for review on a monthly basis.
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5. Segment Financial information (Continued)

Revenue from external customers
Revenue from another operaling segment
Total Income

Adjusted EBITDA

Finance costs

Depreciation

Amortisation

Unallocated

Profit before income tax from continuing
operalions

Other profit and loss disclosures
Deprecialion

Amortisation

Income tax

Segment assels-
Total segment assets
Unallocated items
Total assets per statement of financial position
Capital expenditure

Segment liabilities-
Total segment liabilities
Unallocated items
Total liabilities per statement of financial
position

Central

Intersegment

America et ) elimination Total
129,248 48,495 - 177,743
27.281 659 (26,369) 1,551
156,529 49,154 (26,389) 179,204
17,356 4,525 - 21,881
(9,154)
(7,759)
(1.223)
(1,135)
2,610
{5,637) {2,122} - (7.759)
{710) {321) {192) (1,223)
(2,082) {394) - (2,476)
142,572 44,057 {152,659) 33,970
133,070
167,040
12,595 3,001 - 15,596
84,140 75,889 (118,712) 41,317
90,094
131,411
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5. Segment Financial information (Continued)

2017
Central Intersegment
America Caribbean elimination Total
Revenue from external
e 123,689 46,259 169,948
Revenue from another
operating segment 25,334 938 (24,314) 1,958
149,023 47,197 (24,314) 171,906
Adjusted EBITDA 11,590 4,792 16,382
Finance costs {8.902)
Depreciation {7.013)
Amortisation (1,455)
Unallocated (1,727)
Loss before income tax from
continuing operations (2.715)
Other profit and loss disclosures
Depreciation (4,777) (2,238) - (7,015)
Amortisation (710} {553) {192) (1,455)
Income tax (1,733) {298) - (2,031)
Segment assels-
Total segment assets 127,988 38,630 {137,863) 28,756
Unallocated items 131,707
Total assels per statement of
financial position osey
Capilal expenditure 13,549 2,260 - 15,809
Segment liabilities-
Total segment liabilities 74,264 68,931 {104,109) 39,086
Unallocated items 82.860
Total liabilities per statement of 121,946

financial position
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5. Segment Financial information {Continued)

Segment assets are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assels are allocated based on the
operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

Segment liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the
operations of the segment.

The parent entity is domiciled in Barbados. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the
customers is shown in table below.

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Barbados 7,275 8,599
Costa Rica 26,768 20,692
Dominican Republic 11,380 11,091
El Salvador 20,910 22,036
Guatemala 31,166 26,784
Honduras 9,078 7,967
Nicaragua 20,223 25,949
Panama 15,376 14,097
USA 15 213
Antilles 10,612 11,796
Jamaica 14,115 12,249
Other 12,376 10,433
Total 179,294 171,906

The total of capital expenditure, broken down by location of the assets is shown in the table below.

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Antilles 885 860
Barbados 103 163
Costa Rica 2,574 2,645
E! Salvador 1,898 2,304
Guatemala 3,032 4,234
Nicaragua 649 797
Panama 3,203 2,831
Other 3,252 1,973

Total 15,596 15,807
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6. Revenue

Telecommunications
Sale of goods

Business Solutions
Sale of goods
Services

Lease Income

Timing of Revenue Recognition
Over time
At a point in time

7. Other Income

Interest income

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Commission
Miscellaneous

8. Expenses by Nature

Total direct, selling, administration and other operating expenses:

Cost of inventories and cost related to services

Slaff costs (Nole 9)
Depreciation (Note 15)
Occupancy costs
Commission

Travel

Amortisalion of intangible assets (Note 16)

Telephone and communication
Transportation

Legal and professional fees
Auditor’s remuneration

Office supplies, printing and stationery
Impairment charge for trade and other receivables

Bank charges
Advertising

Repairs and maintenance
Management fees

Other expenses

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

an 1,020

111,381 103,650

46,668 50,328

158,940 154,998

20,354 16,908

179,294 171,906

America  Caribbean "CUIELSL 2o

$'000 $'000

103,016 34,987 (26,389) 111,614
39,802 7,524 S 47,326
142,818 42,511 (26,389) 158,940
2018 2017

$'000 $'000

549 13

- (589)

138 i

710 1,261

1,397 685

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

104,226 98,660

34,597 331N

7,759 7,015

5,262 6,072

3,632 3,854

1,974 2,450

1,223 1,455

1,106 1,173

903 1,066

800 1,389

671 874

480 528

438 682

405 758

342 701

174 276

- 1,452

4,741 4,868

168,733 166,404
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9. Staff Costs
Staff costs comprise:
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Salaries and wages 27,712 26,951
Payroll taxes — employer's portion 2,703 2,604
Pension costs — defined contribution 204 244
Redundancy costs 1,937 1,112
Other 2,041 2,220
34,597 33,131
10. Finance Costs
2018 2017
$'000 $’000
Net foreign exchange losses 1,061 1,673
Interest expense - Loans and finance leases 8,093 7,229
9,154 8,902

11. Taxation

Taxation is based on profit/{loss) for the year or, in some jurisdictions, the greater of a percentage of profit before tax or revenue
adjusted for taxation purposes, and comprises:

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Current tax 2,587 2,190
Deferred tax (Note 18) (111) (159)

2,476 2,031

The tax on the profit/{loss) before tax differs from the theorelical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate as follows:

2018 2017

$°000 $°000
Profit/{Loss) before tax 2,610 (2,715)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rate of 2.5% 65 {(68)
Adjusted for the effects of:
Different tax rates in other countries 1,774 952
Tax on net assetls at 1% 498 192
Income not subject to tax (14) -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 233 310
Tax in respect of prior years 86 16
Other charges and credits {166) 629

Tax charge 2,476 2,031
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11. Taxation {Continued)

2018
Before tax Tax charge After tax
$'000 $'000 $°000
ltems that may be subsequenlly reclassified to profit or
loss
Currency translation differences on the nest assels of
foreign subsidiaries (2,496) ) (2,456)
Other comprehensive income {2,456} - {2,456)
Deferred tax (Note 19) o
2017
Before tax  Tax (charge) After tax
$'000 $'000 $°000
ltems that may be subseguently reclassified to profit or
loss
Currency translation differences on the nest assets of
foreign subsidiaries (265} - (265)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial losses — termination benefits (166} - (166)
Other comprehensive income (431) - (431)

Deferred tax (Note 19) a

12. Investment in other Entities

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the subsidiary undertakings
held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held.

The total non-controlling interest for the period was as follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $°000
Productive Business Solutions Honduras S.A. de 65 132

cwv.

Non-controlling interest in Cayman business machines is immalerial to the shareholder and as such is not disclosed.
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12. Investment in other Entities (Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiary with material non-controlling interest

Set out below is summarised financial information for Productive Business Solutions Honduras S.A. de C.V. thal has non-
controlling interests that is material to the group. The amounts disclosed are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised statement of financial position

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Current
Assels 12,199 5,348
Liabilities (12,383) (4,598)
Total net current (liabilities)/assets (184) 750
Non-current
Assels 2,364 1,077
Net assets 2,180 1,827
Summarised statement of comprehensive income
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Revenue 8,978 7,791
Profit before income tax 563 732
Income tax expense (211} (232)
Net profit for the year/Total
comprehensive income 352 500
Summarised cash flows
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,204 834
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 1,583 {370)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 2,787 464
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at 532 70
beginning of year
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents (5) (2)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 3,314 532
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13. Earnings per Share

Profit/{Loss) for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders

Number of shares

Tolal basic and diluted eamings per share attributable to ordinary
share holders

14. Net Profit/{(Loss) and Accumulated Deficit

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
69 {(4,878)
123,272 123,272
0.06 {3.96)

The net profit/{loss) and accumulated deficit attributable to the shareholder of the Group are reflected in the accounts of the

Company and its subsidiaries as follows:

Net Profit/{Loss)
The Company
Subsidiaries

Accumulated deficit
The Company
Subsidiaries

2018 2017
$°000 $'000
(5.684) (5.873)
5,753 995

69 (4,878)
2018 2017
$'000 $'000

(14,342) (8.471)
8,312 2,938
{6,030) (5,533)
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

At Cost/ Valuation -

At 1 January

Exchange
differences

Additions

Transfers from
inventory

Disposals

Transfers to
inventory

Transfer from CWIP

At 31 December
Depreciation -

At 1 January

Exchange differences

Charge for the year

On disposals and
transfer to
inventory

Relieved on disposals
At 31 December

Net Book Value -
At 31 December

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Fixtures, Capital
Land and Buildings and Plant and Motor Work in
Buildings  Improvements Equipment Vehicles  Progress Total
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
2018
52 3,035 61,087 956 214 65,342
- (122) (1.0583) (14) - {1,189)
- 330 2,475 129 11 2,945
- - 12,643 - - 12,643
- (642) {864) (5) (n {1,512)
- - {9,434) - - {9.434)
= 65 - - (65) -
52 2,666 64,854 1,066 157 68,795
- 1,615 42,647 789 - 45,061
- (67) (702} (11) - (780)
- 225 7,468 66 - 7,759
- {5} (5.069}) - - {5,074)
- (110) (703) (5) - (818)
- 1,658 43,641 839 - 46,138
52 1,008 21,213 227 157 22,657
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment {Continued)

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Fixtures, Capital
Land and Buildings and Plant and Motor Work in
Buildings Improvements Equipment Vehicles Progress Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
2M7
At Cost -
At 1 January 4,313 2,407 58,824 874 12 66,430
Exchange differences (72) (16) 115 (2) - 25
Additions - 666 4,459 87 210 5,422
Tr?:f;‘;’l‘gr’;"“‘ ) ) 10,385 - - 10,385
Disposals {4,189) (22) (3,103} {3) (10) {7.327)
Transfers to inventory - - {9,593} - - {9,593)
At 31 December 52 3,035 61,087 956 212 65,342
Depreciation - -
At 1 January 62 1,426 41,745 722 - 43,955
Exchange differences - (22) 181 (3) - 156
Charge for the year 29 254 6,662 70 - 7,015
On disposals and
transfer to inventory (91) (43) {5,941) - - {6,075)
At 31 December - 1,615 42,647 789 & 45,051
Net Book Value -
At 31 Decamber 52 1,420 18,440 167 212 20,291

The furniture, fixtures, plant and equipment category for the Group includes equipment held for operating leases by various
subsidiaries. Operating lease contracts for these items are entered into with third parties, with periodic lease payments being
36 to 60 months. Items which are leased are transferred from inventory on commencement of the lease arrangements and
are transferred back to inventory on termination of the lease arrangements.
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment {Continued)

The amounts included in property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Equipment held for lease at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

The movement in equipment held for lease was as follows:

Opening net book value

Additions — transfers from inventory during operating lease period
Depreciation charges

Disposals - transfers to inventory upon expiry of operating lease
Depreciation released

Closing net book value

2018 2017
$°000 $°000
40,905 37.668
(24,887) (24,504)
16,018 13,164
2018 2017
$'000 $°000
13,164 12,076
12,643 10,385
(5,424) (4,6689)
(9,434) (9,593)
5,060 4,965
16,018 13,164
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment {Continued)

The pieces of freehold land of the Group were independently revalued as at various dates during 2015 on the basis of open
market value or other market comparable approaches by independent qualified valuators. The directors are of the view that there
were no material changes in the value over the prior year for Freehold land.

The following table analyses the non-financial assets carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

« Inputs other than quoled prices included within leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, or directly (that is, as prices)
or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) {Level 2), and

« Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is unobservable inputs) {Level 3).

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2018 using

Significant
other Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
{Level 2) {Level 3)
$'000 $'000
Recurring fair value measurements
Land and buildings
Land - Surges St Thomas, Barbados - 32
San Salvador, El Salvador: Km.49.5 Litoral, Atami 20 -

20 32
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2017 using

Significant
other Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
$'000 $°000
Recurring fair value measurements
Land and buildings
Land — Surges St Thomas, Barbados - 32
San Salvador, El Salvador: Km.49.5 Litoral, Atami 20 -
20 32

There were no transfers between levels during the year.

Level 2 fair values of land and buildings have been derived using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable
land and buildings in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as properly size. The most significant
input into this valuation approach is price per square fool. The valuation techniques for Level 3 fair values of land and buildings

are disclosed in the tables below.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3}

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2017 and 2018 using significant unobservabie inputs

Land -
Surges St
Thomas,
Barbados Total
$'000 $'000
Opening and Closing
balance 32 32
Range of
unobservable
Fair value at inputs Relationship of
Description December (probabillity - unobservable
2017 and 2018 Valuation Unobservable weighted inputs to fair
$°000 Technigue(s) inputs average) value
Land — Surges St Thomas Market
! Comparable

Barbados 32 approach None None Not applicable



Productive Business Solutions Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2018

(Expressed in United States dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 40

16. Intangible Assets

Year ended 31 December 2018
Opening net book value
Exchange differences
Amortisation (Note 8)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment

Closing net book value

Year ended 31 December 2017
Opening net book value
Exchange differences
Amortisation (Note 8)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2017

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and
impairmant

Closing net book value

Franchise
Agreement &
Goodwill Brands Contracts Licenses Total
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
2018
12,880 1,751 4,129 858 19,618
- - - (2) (2)
- {192) (710} (321) (1,223)
12,880 1,569 3,419 535 18,393
13,796 4,169 14,208 6,383 38,556
(916) {2,610} (10,789) (5,848) {20,163)
12,880 1,659 3.419 535 18,393
Franchise
Agreement &
Goadwill Brands Contracts Licenses Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2017
12,880 1,943 4,839 1,408 21,070
- - - 3 3
- (192) {710) (553) {1.455)
12,880 1,751 4,129 858 19,618
13,796 4,169 14,208 6,385 38,558
(916} (2,418) (10,079) {5,527) (18,940}
12,880 1,751 4,129 858 19,618

Amortisation charges have been included in the olher operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis or when evenls or changes in the circumstances
indicate that the camying value may be impaired. This requires an eslimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit {CGU) to which the goodwill is allocated. The recoverable amount is usually determined by reference to the value in use.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU and also to
choose an appropriate discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those future cash flows.

The allocation of goodwill to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) as categorised by subsidiary is as follows:

2018 2017

$°000 $'000

Barbados Business Machines Limited 403 403
PBS Central America, S.A. 7,539 7.539
Mobay Holdings N. V. 4,256 4,256
Productive Business Solutions Limited {Dominican Republic) 523 523
Other 159 159
12,880 12,880

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based on value in use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year periad. Cash flows beyond the 5™ year
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

Key assumptions for value in use calculations for 2018 were as follows:

Revenue
Revenue growth rate Average Discount
growth rate year 2 EBITDA to rate
year 1 onwards revenue 2018
Barbados Business Machines Limited 22.1% 2.0% 19.9% 16.8%
PBS Central America S.A. 3.5% 3.0% 11.7% 21.6%
Mobay Holdings N.V. 7.8% 3.0% 14.7% 14.9%
Productive Business Solutions Limited
{Dominican Republic) 32% 3.0% 12.1% 16.8%
Key assumptions for value in use calcufations for 2017 were as follows:
Revenus
Revenue growth rate Average Discount
growth rate year 2 EBITDA to rate
year 1 onwards revenue 2017
Barbados Business Machines Limited 17.0% 3.0% 20.5% 19.6%
PBS Central America S.A. 23.7% 3.5% 12.5% 15.5%
Mobay Holdings N. V. 7.0% 3.0% 14.7% 14.2%
Productive Business Solutions Limited
{Dominican Republic) 19% 3.0% 8.7% 17.8%
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)
Impact of possible changes in key assumptions
Barbados Business Machines Limiled
2018

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 11% lower than management's estimates for the Barbados Business
Machines Limited CGU, the Group would have an excess of $1,563,000 over the carrying value of goodwill and therefore no
impairment would have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate had been 2% higher than management’s estimates, the
Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $1,933,000 and therefore no impairment would have been
recognised.

2017

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 10.0% lower than management's estimates for the Barbados Business
Machines Limited CGU, the Group would have an excess of $2,294,000 over the carrying value of goodwill and therefore no
impairment would have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate had been 1% higher than management’s estimates, the
Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $4,514,000 and therefore no impairment would have been
recagnised.

PBS Central America S.A

2018

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 1% lower than management's estimates for PBS Central America S.A.
CGU, the Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $1,592,000 and therefore an impairment would
have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate for the PBS Central America S.A. CGU had been 2% higher than
managamenl's eslimates, the Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $1,932,000 and therefore no
impairment would have been recognised.

2017

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 2% lower than management's estimales for PBS Central America S.A.
CGU, the Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $3,062,000. If the pre-tax discount rate for the
PBS Central America S.A. CGU had been 2% higher than management’s estimates, the Group would have an excess over
the carrying value of goodwill of $1,932,000 and therefore no impairment would have been recognised.

Mobay Holdings N. V.
2018

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 3.0% lower than management's estimates for the Mobay Holdings N. V.
CGU, the Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $1,228,000 and therefore no impairment would
have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate for had been 1% higher than management’s estimates, the Group would
have excess of $728,000 and therefore no impairment would have been recognised.

2017

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 2.0% lower than management'’s estimates for the Mobay Holdings N. V.
CGU, the Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of $399,000 and therefore no impairment would
have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate for had been 2% higher than management’s estimates, the Group would
have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of 224,000 and therefore no impairment would have been recognised.

Productive Business Solutions Limited (Dominican Republic)

2018

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 25.0% lower than management's estimates for the Productive Business
Solutions Limited (Dominican Republic) CGU, the Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of
$1,848,000 and therefore no impairment would have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate for had been 2% higher than
management's estimates, the Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $1,380,000 and tharefore no
impairment would have been recognised.
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

2017

If the budgeted revenue growth for year 1 had been 15.0% lower than management's estimates for the Produclive Business
Solutions Limited (Dominican Republic} CGU, the Group would have an excess over the camying value of goodwill of
$1,784,000 and therefore no impairment would have been recognised. If the pre-tax discount rate for had been 6% higher than
management's estimates, the Group would have an excess over the carrying value of goodwill of $2,916,000 and therefore no

impairment would have been recognised.

17. Lease Receivables

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Gross investment in finance leases
Not later than one year 1,425 2,448
Later than one year and not later than five years 4,313 2,727
5,738 5,175
Less: Uneamed income (1,297) (1,208}
4,441 3,967
Net investment in finance leases may be classified as follows:
Not later than one year 2,048 1,885
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,393 2,082
4,441 3.967
18. Long Term Receivables
2018 2017
$°000 $'000
Profuturo (Note a) 494 484
Maxima Industria Litografica, S.R.L. de C.V. (Note b) 83 -
Designs Factory S.R.L. de C.V. (Nota ¢) 66 -
Gréfica Fénix, S.A. de C.V. (Note d}) 24 60
Innovaciones en Papel S. A. (Note e) - 59
Ediciones AGM (Note f) 55 -
Platino, S. A. (Note g) - 50
Impresos Graficos Sanchez {Note h) 48 -
Xmedia Impresos (Note i) 47 -
Argelia Melissa Ferrera (Note j) 46 -
Digital Solucién Arte, S.R.L. de C.V. (Note k) 42 -
Eiseman Dileyda Lobo Avila / Creaciones Publicidad (Note [) 30 -
Serviprensa (Note m) - 28
Grupo Aele, S.A., de C.V. (Nole n) 16 27
Boanerges Huezo (Note o) - 26
Other (Note p) 615 652
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18. Long Term Receivables

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g

h

i)

N

k}

/)

m)

n)

o)

P

Profuturo
The balance eamns interest of 5.17% per annum and is maintained as an investment fund.

Maxima Industria Litogréfica, S.R.L. de C. V.
The balance earns interest of 15% per annum and matures on March 2020.

Designs Factory S.R.L de C.V.
The balance eams interest of 18% per annum and matures on 20 February 2020.

Grafica Fénix, S.A.
The balance earns interest of 12% per annum and matures on 20 February 2020.

Innovaciones en Papel, Sociedad Andnima
The balance eamns interest of 11% per annum and matures on 30 April 2021. This balance has been collected in 2018,

Ediciones AGM
The balance earns interest of 15% per annum and matures on March 2020.

Platino, Sociedad Andnima
The balance eamns interest of 12% per annum and matures on 29 October 2019. This balance has been collected in
2018.

Impresos Gréficos Sanchez Imgrasa
The balance eams interest of 14% per annum and matures on 30 November 2020.

Xmedia
The balance eams interest of 18% per annum and maturas on April 2020.

Argelia Melissa Ferrera
The balance earns interest of 18% per annum and matures on February 2020.

Digital Solucion Arte, S.R.L. de C. V.
The balance eamns interest of 18% per annum and matures on February 2020.

Eiserman Dileyda I obo Avila/Creaciones Publicidad
The balance eamns interest of 18% per annum and and matures on 27 May 2020.

Serviprensa
The balance earned interest of 14% per annum. This balance was collected in 2018.

Grupo Aele, S.A. de C.V.
The balance eamns interest of 18% per annum and matures on April 2020.

Boanerges Huezo.
The balance eamed interest of 18% per annum. This balance has been collected in 2018.

Other

The balance relates to amounts that are individually insignificant. These balances relate to equipment sales with terms
between 12 and 37 months. These are secured with promissory notes and eams interest between 12% and 21% and is
guaranteed with a pledge on the equipment financed
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19. Deferred Income Taxes

{a) Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on all temporary differences under the liability method and comprise:

{b) The movement on the deferred income tax assets balance for the year is as follows:

(c)

Deferred income tax assels
Deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax asset

Net assel at beginning of the year

Credit to profit and loss (Note 11)

Credit to other comprehensive income on sale of land and
building

Exchange difference

Net assets at end of the year

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable to:

Property, plant and equipment

Pravisions
Foreign exchange losses
Tax losses camied forward

Other

{d) The movement on the deferred tax asset is attributable to:

(e)

{N

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
Provisions

Foreign exchange losses

Tax losses carried forward
Other

2018 2017
$'000 $°000
1,439 1,015
(423) (152)
1,016 863
2018 2017
$'000 $°000
863 410
11 159
() 299
44 (5)
1,016 863
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
460 413
363 186
87 210
46 195
60 (141)
1,016 863
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
47 1,039
177 (50)
(123) 210
(149) (273)
201 (473)
153 453

Except for property, plant and equipment, all deferred income tax items are expected to be recovered/ seftled within one

year.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss camy-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through taxable profils is probable. Losses amount to $184,000, {2017: $780,000).

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for withholding tax that would be payable on unappropriated
profits of subsidiaries as the amounts are pemmanently reinvesied. Such unappropriated profits tolaled $27,256,000

{2017: $28,671,000).
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20. Related Party Transactions and Balances

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

{a)

(b)

(e

(d)

Sale of goods and services
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Sale of goods
Olher related parties 6,599 1,958

Goods are sold based on the price lists in force and terms that would be available to third parties. Transactions with
other related parties include those with the ultimate parent.

Purchase of goods and services

2018 2017
$'000 $'000

Purchases of goods
Other related parties 1,354 1,449

Transactions with other related parties include those with Facey Telecom Intemational.

Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive). The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is shown below:

2018 217
$°000 $'000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3,983 4,459
Payrall taxes — employer's portion 616 719
Pension benefits 39 55
Other 238 51
4,876 5.284
Direclors' fees Nil Nil
Other transactions
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Parent
Managemaent fee expense - 1,452
Other related parties —
Interest paid (711) 1
Interest income 788 -
Rental expense - 48

77 1,501
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20. Related Party Transactions and Balances {Continued)

(e} Year end balances arising from sales/purchases of goods

2018 2017
$'000 $°'000
Receivable from related parties:
Parent 1,406 3
Fellow subsidiaries and shareholder 6,205 6.228
7,611 6,231
Payable to related parties:
Parent 4,207 3,249
Fellow subsidiaries 3,836 4,000
8,043 7,249
21. Inventories
2018 2017
$°000 $°000
Finished goods 39,474 40,294
Goods in transit 9,145 7.756
48,619 48,050
Less: Provision for obsolete stock {5,663) {5,350)
42,956 42700

Cost of inventory recognised as an expense aggregating to $104,226,000 (2017: $98,660,000), were recognised in profit
and loss.

22. Trade and Other Receivables

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Trade receivables 44,542 41,788
Less: Provision for impairment {1.843) {1.827)
42,699 39,961
Prepaid expenses 2,415 1,908
Other 5,475 1,724
50,589 43,593
23. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2018 2017
$'000 $°'000
Cash at bank and in hand 6,570 12,097
Bank overdraft (Note 25) {3,505) -
3,065 12,097

The weighted average interest rate at the reporting date for short term bank deposits was 0.75% (2017: 0.75%) per annum.
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24. Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables
Interest Payables
Accrued liabilities
Other

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
29,968 27,015

2,081 1,926
4,944 5,480
3,494 4,638
40,487 39,059

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are assumed to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

25. Borrowings

(a) Bank overdraft

Short term loans —
(b) Facey Telecom Caribbean Limited
(c) Davivienda
(d) Eppley Limited
(e) Operaciones de Consumao, S.A.
() Operaciones de Consumao, S.A.

Current portion of non-current borrowings
Total Current Borrowings
Non-Current Borrowings —
(g) Finance lease
(h) JCSD Trustee Services Limited on behalf of Bondholders
(i} Redeemable preference shares
(iy Eppley Limited

Curmrent portion of non-current borrowings
Total non-current borrowings
Total borrowings

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
3,505 -
490 490
250 250
786 -

5 162

5 1,089

1,526 1,991
99 627
5,130 2,618
1,270 2,066
49,863 48,716
19,417 19,667
40 60
70,590 70,509
(99) (627)
70,491 69,882
75,621 72,500
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25. Borrowings (Continued)

Total borrowings comprise:

2018 2017

$'000 $°000

Non-related parties 74,305 71,950
Related parties 1,316 550
75,621 72,500

)
The exposure of the group’s borrowings to inlerest rate changes and the contractual re-pricing dales at the end of the reporling
period are as follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
6-12 months 5,130 2,618
1-5 years 70,491 69,882
75,621 72,500
The carrying amounis and fair value of the non-current borrowings are as follows:
Carrying amount Fair value
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Bonds 49,863 48,716 51,858 48,849
Redeemable preference shares 19,417 19,667 18,737 19,198
Finance lease liabilities 1,192 1,461 1,192 1,461
Other 19 38 19 -
70,491 69,882 71,806 69,508

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities by the amount of $3,505,000 (2017 nil).
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25. Borrowings {(Continued)

(a) Bank overdraft
The Group has various bank overdraft facilities which attract interast at commercial rates.

Short term loans

(b) Facey Telecom Caribbean Limited
These represent unsecured loans which attract interest of 9.75% per annum and are due at call.

{c} Davivienda
This represents an unsecured loan to finance working capital at a rate of 6.90% per annum and becomes due on 15
February 2019.

(d) Eppley Limited
This represents an unsecured US dollar loan eaming an interest of 11.58% per annum and becomes due on 14 February
2019.

(e} Operaciones de Consumo, S.A.
This represents an unsecured US dollar eaming an interest of 9.38% per annumand matured on 28 February 2018.

(f) Operaciones de Consumo, S.A.
This represents an unsecured US dollar loan eamning an interest of 9.38% per annum and matured on 31 January 2018.

Non-Current Borrowings

{g) Finance lease
This represents the present value of finance lease commitments. Finance leases rmaturing within 12 months amounts to
$78,000 (2017 - $605,000).

(h) JCSD Trustee Services Limited on behalf of Bondholders
This long-term loan represents monies raised via a private Bond Offering (“Bond"). The Bond is secured by the company
and its assets. The entire Bond's principal matures April 2021 {5-year term), bearing interest fixed at 7.7% - 7.75% per
annum and to be paid quarterly. Charges and guarantees over all present and fulure assets and property of Productive
Business Solutions Limiled to secure payment of this obligation are as follows:

s Guarantees with Productive Business Solutions Limited and ils subsidiaries with the exception of Cayman
Business Machines (CBM) Limited and Produclive Business Solutions Honduras.

» Charge over assets of Productive Business Solutions Limited and ils subsidiaries with the exceplion of Productive
Business Solutions Honduras, Productive Business Solutions Belize, Eastem Commerce S.A. (Costa Rica),
Cayman  Business Machines (CBM) Limited, Productive Business Solutions  Limited
{St. Lucia), Produclive Business Solutions Caribbean Limited and Productive Business Solutions St. Lucia.

e Charge over shares of all entities in the Productive Business Solutions Limited sub group with restrictions for
Productive Business Solutions Honduras, Productive Business Solutions Caribbean Limited and Productive
Business Solutions Nicaragua,

The deferred finance charges offset against the loan amounts to $2,390,000 (2017 - $3,576,000).

The loan agreement with JCSD Trustee Services Limiled was amended on 28 March 2018 to exclude preference shares
from the definition of debt for the purposes of computing the financial covenants.

() Reedemable preference shares
This represents 25,800,000 Redeemable Cumulalive Preference Shares in Jamaica dollars entitled to a fixed preferential
cumulalive cash dividend of 9.75% per annum, to be paid semi-annually. The maturity date is 30" day of June of 2024,
The deferred finance charges offset against the loan amounts to $929,000 (2017 - $1,047,000).

(i) Eppley Limited
This reprasents a loan for the acquisition of vehicles, payable in 36 monthly instalments which attracts interest of 11.5%
per annum,
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26. Share Capital

Authorised -
123,271,000 Ordinary shares
Issued and fully paid -

123,271,000 (2017 — 123,271,000)
Ordinary shares

2018
$'000

57,317

2017
$'000

57,317

In June 2017, the Company issued 54,989,000 ordinary shares to an affiliated company. The value of the shares issued at that
time was $1,000. In September 2017, the Company issued 23,272,727 shares to Portland Caribbean Fund, executive and
directors and the general public. The value of the shares issued amounted to $12,800,000 ($0.55 per share). The related

transaction costs amounting to $485,000 have been netled off with the proceeds.

27. Other Reserves

Other reserves primarily represent the currency translation differences resulting from the unrealised gains and losses on the
translation of the net assets of subsidiaries that have a different functional currency from that of the Company.
Other reserves also include actuarial loss and revaluation reserve for the revaluation of land and buildings. The actuaral loss
resulted from the application of a discount rate equivalent to that of a deep financial market for a highest quality corporate bond in

the calculation of present value of employee henefils.

Actuarial Revaluation Currency
Losses Reserves, translation
$'000 net of taxes differences Total
$'000 $°000 $°000
Balance as at 1 January 2017 (117} 2,794 (13,703) {11,026)
Movement during 2017 117 {2.577) (265} {2,725)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 - 217 (13,968} (13,751)
Movement during 2018 - G {2,456) (2,456)
Balance as at 31 December 2018 - 217 (16,424} {16,207)
28. Accumulated Deficit
Total
$'000
Balance as at 1 January 2017 (2,984)
Actuarial losses on the termination benefit (283)
Transfer from reserves 2,612
Loss for the year (4,878)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 (5,533)
Change in accounting policy (566)
Profit for the year 69

Balance as at 31 December 2018

{6,030)
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29.

30.

Litigation and Contingent Liabllities

The Group is subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceedings in the normal course of business. Provision is made
for such matters when, in the opinion of management and its professional advisors, it is probable that a payment will be made
by the Group and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Claims asseried against the Group, according to the principles cutlined above, have not been provided for. Management is of
the opinion that the claims are either without merit, can be successfully defended or will resuit in exposure to the Group which
is immaterial to both financial position and resulls of operations.

Retirernent Benefit Obligation

The movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation during the year was as follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $°000
Initial balance 579 -
Current service cost 585 92
Interest cost 17 22
Loss from change in financial assumptions - 166
Adjustment S 399
Benefits paid {616) (100)
At end of year 565 579
The amounts recognised in armiving at profit or loss were as follows:
2018 2017
$°000 $'000
Current service cost 585 92
Interest cost 17 22
At end of year 602 114
The amounls recognised in amiving other comprehensive income is as follows:
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Re measurement loss on obligation - 166
The distribution of the obligalion by country was as follows:
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Nicaragua 98 102
El Salvador 467 477
565 579

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

2018
Impact on Retirement benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decreasein
Assumption Assumption Assumption

Discount rate 1% (34) 38
Inflation rate 1% -
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30. Retirement Benefit Obligation {(Continued)

Increase
assumption
by one year
$'000
Life expectancy 92

2017
Impact on Retirement benefit obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate 1% {38) 50
Inflation rate 1% 9 (12}

Increase

assumption
by one year

$'000

Life expectancy 99

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely lo occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {(present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting pericd) has been applied as when
calculaling the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial posilion.
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30. Retirement Benefit Obligation {Continued)

Termination benefits in El Salvador and Nicaragua are established by law and entitle the employee to receive a payment upon
termination of employment, regardless of cause. In El Salvador the benefit is founded in the law 592, that is the regulatory law
for the economic benefit for voluntary resignation. Employees with more than two years of uninterrupled service for the
company shali receive a paymenit of, al least, the equivalent of 15 days of minimum wage for each year of service. In
Nicaragua, the law 185, Labour Code, entitles the employee to the right to receive a payment equivalent to one monthly salary
for each year of service, up to the third year, and 20 days of salary for each additional year. Neither of these plans require the
employer to establish a fund.

The principal actuarial assumptions used in valuing post-employment benefits are as follows:

PBS Nicaragua 52'311]: ;’:3;3
Discount rate 10.5% 10.5%
Future salary increases 5% 5%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years

PBS E| Salvador :.g;g S%g:l;

Discount rate 4.08% 4.08%
Future salary increases 3.4% 3.4%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years

31. Commitments

Capital commitments
There are no capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred.

Operating lease commitments — as lessee
The fulure minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

Not later than 1 year 3,726 4,055
Later than 1 year and not later than & years 12,905 12,588
Later than five years 2,951 2,278
19,582 18,921

The group leases various properties and equipment. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes. The lease arrangements include the option to renew the leases.
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32. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Reconciliation of the Group's net profit to cash generated from operating activities:

Net profit/(loss)
Iltems not affecting cash:
Depreciation
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Actuarial losses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Taxation expense
Foreign exchange (gains) losses
Interest income
Interest expensa

Change in non-cash working capital balances:
Inventories

Contract assets

Accounts receivable

Due from related parties
Long term receivable

Lease receivable

Accounts payable

Contract liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation
Due to related parties

Taxation paid
Net cash used in operaling activities
Net Debt Reconciliation

Note 2018 2017
$'000 $'000

134 (4,746)

15 7,759 7,015
16 1223 1,455
- 114

- 589

11 2,476 2,031
(2.357) 1,213

7 (549) (13)
10 8,003 7,229
16,779 14,887

(8,539)  (12,974)

(826) -

(6.941) (6,661)

(2,001) (2,.278)

(180) (493)

(474) (409)

1,273 7,824

3,670 -

(14) (100)

794 (3.378)

3,541 (3,582)

(2,819) (2.304)

722 (5.886)

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents

Borrowings - repayable within one year (including overdraft)
Borrowings - repayable after one year

Net debt

Cash and liquid investments
Gross debt - fixed interest rales
Net debt

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
6,570 12,007
(5.130) (2.618)
(70,491) (69,882)
(69,051) (60,403)
6,570 12,097
(75.621) (72.500)
(69,051) {60,403)
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32. Cash Flows from Operating Activities (Continued)

Finance Finance
leases leases

due due Borrowing Borrowing
within 1 after 1 due within due after
Cash year year 1 year 1 year Total
$'000 $°'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
Net debt as at 31 December 2016 4,962 - - (18,190) (47,938) (61,166)
Cash flows 7,126 (605) (1.461) 18,588 (17.001) 6,647
Foreign exchange adjustments 9 - - - {711) {702)
Other non-cash movements - - - (2,411} (2,771) (5,182)
Net debt as at 31 December 2017 12,097 {605} (1.461) {2,013} (68,421) (60,403)
Cash flows (5,523) 527 269 {3,039} 16 (7.,750)
Foreign exchange adjustmenls (4) - - - 369 365
Other non-cash movements - - - - (1,263) {1,263)
Net debt as at 31 December 2018 6,570 {78) (1,192) {5,052} (69,299) (69,051)

33. Assets pledged as security

With the exception of Productive Business Solutions Honduras $.A. de C.V., Easton Commerce 5.A. (Costa Rica), Productive
Business Solutions (Belize) Ltd., Cayman Business Machines {Cayman Islands) and Productive Business Solutions Limited
(St. Lucia), the assets of the subsidiaries are pledged as security for the borrowings. The pledged assels at year end tolaled
$135,130,000 (2017: $137,999,000).

34. Changes to Accounting Policies

The Group adopted IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ on 1 January
2018.

The group elected to apply the limited exemption in IFRS 9 relating to transition for classification and measurement and
impairment, and accordingly has not restated comparative periods in the year of initial application. On adoption of IFRS 15,
the group has opted to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard at the date of initial application as
permitted by paragraph C3.
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34. Changes to Accounting Policies (Continued)

To ensure compliance on adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 the Group had to updale cerain policies.

IFRS 9 — impact of adoplion
The effect on the initial balances as a result of the implementation of IFRS 9 is shown below.

Current financial assets

Due from related parties

Accounts receivable

Current portion of lease receivables
Cash and deposils

Non-current financial assets
Long term receivables

Non-Current portion of lease receivables

Current financial liabilities
Accounts payable

Due to related parties

Current portion of finance leases

Current portion of long term loans - related parties
Short term loans - non-related parties

Short term loans - related parties

Non-current financial liabilities

Non-Current portion of finance leases
Non-Current portion of long term loans - non-related parlies
Non-Current portion of long term loans - related parties

Measurement category

Original

Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Amorlized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amoriized cost

Amortized cost
Amorlized cost
Amortized cost

The adjustment to equity on implementation of IFRS 9 was as follows:

Retained eamings at 31 December 2017

Increase in loss allowance

Retained eamings at 1 January 2018, restaled

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has four types of financial assets that are subject o the new expected credit loss model under IFRS 9:

Loans receivable

Lease receivables

Due from related party balances
Trade receivables

New

Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Amortized cost
Amortized cost

Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amortized cost
Amoriized cost
Amortized cost

Amorlized cost
Amorlized cost
Amoriized cost

Carrying amount

Original New
$'000 $'000
6,231 5,610
43,593 43,648
1,885 1,885
12,097 12,097
1,386 1,386
2,082 2,082
39,638 39,638
7,249 7,249
605 605

22 22
1,501 1,501
490 490
1,461 1,461
68,383 68,383
38 38
$°000
{5,533)

566
(6,099)
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34. Changes to Accounting Policies (Continued}

The Group revised its impairment methodology under IFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. The impact of the change
in impairment methodology on the Group’s retained eamings is disclosed above.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immatenal.

IFRS 15 — impact of adoption
The effect on financial asselts and financial liabililies as a result of implementing IFRS 15 is shown below.

Carrying Reclassification Re-measurement  Carrying amount

amount 31 $'000 $'000 1January 2018
December 2017 $°000
$°000

Trade receivables 40,399 (1,833} - 38,566
Current contract assets - 1,883 - 1,883
Other cumrent financial assets 51,809 - - 51,809
Other current assets 37,115 - - 37,115
Other non-current assets 24,320 - - 24,320
Contract liahilities - {1,787} - (1,787)
Trade and other payables (34,477) 1,737 - (32,740)
Provisions {4,930) - - (4,930)
Deferred tax assets 401 - - 401

As part of the requirements introduced by IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, the Group classifies rights and
obligations arising from contracts with customers whenever either party to the contract has performed.

Total contract assets are shown in the table below.

$'000

Contract Assets
on equipment conlracts 5
on service contracts 821
826

The contract liabilities refer to advances received from customers under the promise to deliver equipment. Total contract
liabilities at the end of the year is reflected in the table below.

Current
$'000

Contract Liabilities
on equipment contracts 3,407
on service contracts 263

3,670
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34. Changes to Accounting Policies {Continued)

In the current period revenue was recognized in connection with contract liabilities recognized at the beginning of the year.
This revenue was broken down as follows:

$°000

Revenue recognized in contract liabilities
on equipment contracts 1,200
on service contracts 587
1,787

The table below reflects the dollar amount of the Group's unsatisfied performance obligations for long term contracts with
customers. The Group has not yet recognized revenue on these unsatisfied performance obligations, however as these are
contracts in operation or, at least, already signed with our customers, it is expected that most of it will flow be completed

during 2019.
$°000
Unsatisfied long-term contracts
short term portion 13,861
long term portion 16,504
30,365

35. Subsequent Events
©On 20 November 2018, the Government of Barbados announced upcoming changes to its regulations, which include abolishing
the Intemational Business Companies Act. The revised tax rates for fiscal years commencing 1 Januvary 2019 are as follows:
first $500,000 of taxable income is subject to tax at 5.5%, the next $9,500,000 at 3.0%, the next $10,000,000 at 2.5% and all
amounts in excess of $15,000,000 at 1.0%. The Company qualifies for grandfathering up to June 30, 2021 and awaits further
guidance from the Government of Barbados on transitioning to the new regulations.



